Editorial: 

FACE THE FACTS
The killing of US soldiers in Iraq and now in Afghanistan is growing concern in American society. Long back the killings of more than 40, 000 US soldiers in Vietnam, finally compelled the US govt. to withdraw from the senseless war. Inter alia, killing of Russians in Afghanistan in 80s became a major issue in the then USSR. In J&K state according to official statements issued from time to time more than 5279 army, paramilitary including police personnel have been killed in Kashmir from last 20 years i.e. more than the soldiers killed in wars with neighbouring county. The conflict has the economical and human dimensions. The human loss has never become an issue before the Indian civil society. They are insensitive and indifferent towards the human and also the material losses in Kashmir, hardly people in India seem to be concerned about the killings of their soldiers in Kashmir. On the contrary, the jingoism and chauvinism is on ascendancy and there seems to be competition in it, to retain Kashmir till last Indian soldier. The ultra-nationalist Indians mostly from the Brahminical elite class are increasingly hawkish and adamant to face any eventuality even to go for full-scale war. They are not the foot soldiers and are part of the privileged political elite, who are not affected by the conflict; but in fact they are beneficiary from the military industrial complexes. It is also a cultural issue. 

An over populated country riddled with poverty has global ambitions. According to the Global Hunger Index, India is ahead in poverty than Sub Saharan African Countries. A country where more than 200 million people are hungry 35 % of malnourished children of the world, a country in which 77 % live on Rs. 20 per day. According to National Crime Records Bureau since 1997 to 2007, 1-82, 936 farmers have committed suicides. In Mumbai city alone, more than 4000 commuters die every year while traveling in trains, human life has no value; in fact, they are in plenty it doesn’t matter how many people die in stampedes, for the ruling class. Obviously, the left leaning intellectuals, voluntary and political movements in India often questions these issues and policies, and also the sanity of conflict in Kashmir or elsewhere. It is, therefore, that 1/3 of India is reeling under the armed conflict because the deprivation of the people particularly the Adivasies and Dalits who are facing political, social and economical injustice. Notwithstanding, the internal conflict, the ruling class are increasingly becoming hegemonic and obsessed with being regional and global power, so at any cost they want to retain their jingoistic ambitions and their best new found ally is the corporate media. The corporate media is manufacturing the facts and public opinion, and to some extent propagating war on Kashmiri people and also on the neighbouring countries. The corporate electronic and print media is unleashing the propaganda in order to support the ruling class ambitions and least highlighting the losses of Indian soldiers in Kashmir or the problems faced by the soldiers. 

The armed forced continue to grapple with stress related deaths in shape of suicide and ‘fragging’ cases. In 2008, for instance there were 151 suicide and 4 ‘fragging’ cases in three services with prolong deployment in operations in Kashmir and northeast, it is exacting the heavy toll on the physical endurance and mental health of the soldiers; they undergo tremendous stress for not being able to take care of problems faced by their families back home. Even officers are working in the institutions against their will, but as bonded labourers most of them were disillusioned with their present jobs. It has never been an issue for Indian civil society. This callous indifference of the Indian media and Indian civil society is likely to paint them in the corner and the quagmire in which Indian govt. is likely to find itself. It is unlikely that in the near future the govt. will accept the reality as the Danish saying goes “face the facts otherwise they will stab you in the back” instead like proverbial ostrich like behaviour is adopted which is likely to cost India more in future. A nation’s real assets are the statesmanship, which Indian state is lacking and the leading civil society leaders in India are also not courageous enough to call a spade a spade. The argument advanced by some friends is that still India is willing to pay any prize to retain the state of J&K and they have succeeded in it, as not a single inch have been taken away by the militants in last 20 years of conflict. It may be true, but it is also true that nothing has changed on the ground. Even after 20 years, the militancy has not been neutralized, which is appearing like a hydra, with more than six hundred thousand troopers making Kashmir highly militarized zone. Instead the suicidal rate of the soldiers are increasing and the armed forces medical service and army headquarters are seriously disturbed to tackle the situation of the growing fatigues, stress and frustration of the soldiers. The soldiers giving outlet to their frustration are indulging in gross war crimes and crimes against humanity against non-combatant Kashmiris including committing sexual abuses to the women folk of Kashmir.   

FAMILY INFORM TO COLLECT THE BODY

Army of 9 Rashtriya Rifles (RR) in its FIR dated 5 December 2004, claimed it had killed three militants in a Masjid at Ishmis Bhan, Kulgam then part of Anantnag district of south Kashmir. The army claim was strongly contested by the family of one of the killed Abid Gulzar Kadoo. 

Parents of Abid while talking to The Informative Missive said, “Our son was not a militant. The army’s claim was unfounded and mischievous. The army only wants to justify the killing by claiming our son a militant. Our son was already cleared by the CID/CIK and police department after his arrest by police and STF Khanabal.” 
Abid’s father Gulzar Kadoo said, “In November 2004, late in the evening around 10.00 pm there was a knock at our door and on opening the door, we spotted some armed masked men, who immediately ordered us to put off the lights. They called my son out and took him along. When I intervened and tried to stop them, they pushed and threatened me and shouted that they have some important work with him. Initially, I thought it was for money as they (unknown gunmen) invariably used to come in our area for extorting money from the residents. But little did I know that it was the call for his death. While waiting of his return, after few weeks we were informed that he was killed in an encounter in a Masjid at Kulgam by 9 RR personnel.”

Abid’s mother Hafeeza said, “After few weeks, an unknown person appeared and informed me that Abid was killed in Kulgam in an encounter with army. My husband rushed to Kulgam to check. He was shell-shocked to learn that Abid was laid buried there in a local graveyard for couple of days. Abid’s body was exhumed and brought to the native village and was laid to rest in ancestral graveyard.”

Gulzar Ahmad said, “Two bullets were pumped into his chest and I identified him by his face and his friend’s name engraved on his right hand. Kulgam villagers helped me in bringing his body to my native village.”  

Abid’s family didn’t file FIR fearing army and police reprisal. “We didn’t file FIR, as we fear that army and police could come to our home anytime to harass us, as harassment was a routine practice in our village. I always fear for my daughter, as the area was then a hub of army and its backed renegades. It was easy for anyone to masquerade and harass the family or misbehave with my daughter,” Gulzar said.

Gulzar further said, “After his disappearance, we made tireless efforts, which ended up with the news of his killing at the hands of army. Hitherto, I am unable to understand for which fault my son was killed. His disappearance and subsequent killing pushed us in the state of penury and distress. My wife is ailing since years; I have daughter of marriageable age and a 14 year son. I am a petty clerk with a private transport company making meager earning. From last couple of years, I am suffering from acute back pain which unable me to carry on the work smoothly and regularly. Abid had already given up his studies to support the family and the family conditions never get stabilizes after Abid’s killing.”

While describing Abid, Gulzar said, “Abid was very young then when he left his studies to support poverty ridden family. He was working as a bus conductor. Abid was an industrious boy and we had pinned all hopes on him. He was always concerned about the family affairs particularly about his sister’s marriage.”

Hafeeza was recuperating at home, as she was operated well before his son was picked up by unknown persons questioned, “If my son was already cleared by CID/CIK and police departments then for what reasons he was killed by the troops. The trooper’s allegation was a blatant lie. In past, yes, he was arrested by the STF personnel during a raid on May 4, 2003 at our house. If he was a militant why then STF freed him. Why not he was detained or sentenced then.” 

While giving the past arrest details of Abid, his parents carrying the CID/CIK report of their son in which Abid’s statement was mentioned and also the observations of the interrogation officer was recorded.   

According to the contents of the CID/CIK report endorsed by the police, Abid enrolled in Nusrat-ul-Islam Public High School in 1988 at the age of 4 where he studied till 1998. Later on, he started Islamic studies from Idarh Tehqeeqat-e-Islam till October 2002. In November 20002, he went to UP with one Gulzar Ahmad Shah of Chatergul to get enrolled in Al-Jamait-ul-Ishrafia for further Islamic studies. Then on his way to Udhampur the duo was arrested by police and detained at Ramble police station, Jammu for three days. After that they were taken to Jammu where police handed them over to police station Satwari where after 13 days detention and interrogation they were released without any case/registration. 

Thereafter, Gulzar Ahmad went to UP and Abid returned back home to support his family. He engaged himself as a conductor with TATA mini bus no. JK03 5226 owned by one Mohammad Yousuf of Lasibal plying on Anangnag-Kokernag rout. 

“On 5.5.2003, Abid was re-arrested by the STF camped at Khannabal during a night raid. He was taken to Khanabal JIC and was detained there for two days. On 7.5.2003 the STF handed him over to police station Sadder, Anantnag. Saddar police station filed FIR No. 214/03 U/S 307, 427 RPC 3/4 Exp. Sub. Act. On 8.5.2003, he was taken to JIC Hari Niwas for further questioning,” the report read.

The interrogation officer in its report cleared him from the charges filed against him. In its report the interrogation officer said that Abid had not confessed about the involvement in the commission of above mentioned case. No arms or ammunition was recovered from Abid’s possession. The interrogation officer maintained, thus as per interrogation conducted and field report obtained from field staff Abid was not found affiliated with militancy. As such not a fit case to be recommended for detention under PSA. 

However, let the normal law already invoked mentioned in FIR take its own course to prosecute the subject if case is made out against the subject, the inquiry officer said in his report.

The observation of the enquiry officer was fully endorsed by the Dy. Superintendent of Police, JIC Hari Niwas Srinagar. 

The disturbed parents are keen to know the truth as to why their son was killed by the troops. “We just want to know the truth, no matter how bitter it would be,” Abid’s parents expressed. 

Gulzar Ahmad moved an application to the office of State Human Rights Commission for conducting an investigation in his son’s killing. 

BEATING DROWN A TEENAGER, DIES 

On July 3, 2009, dead body of a nine-year-old, Khalid Sharif Mir son of Mohammad Sharif Mir of Bagaat, Batpora, Sopore was recovered from river Jehlum after three days incessant search. Khalid, a student of 3rd standard at Leather Land School, Sopore had gone missing on June 30 at about 2:30 pm when entire Sopore was on boil over Baramulla killing. 
During searches, the family came to know that some youth including Khalid had drowned into river while CRPF personnel were beating the youth engaged in stone pelting. The locals of area alleged that Khalid had fell into river after he was beaten by CRPF troopers.

The teenagers’ death sparked off massive protests in Sopore area. The protesters raised anti-troopers and pro-freedom slogans and were demanding action against the erring troopers. To quell the angry protesters CRPF and Police resorted to aerial firing, teargas shelling and ruthless beating. Thirty persons suffered injuries.

To document the incident a reporter of The Informative Missive visited Bagaat area of Sopore and talked to the father of slain minor.

Mohammad Sharif Mir (40), deceased’s father said: “On the momentous day of June 30, there was curfew like situation in entire Bagaat and Batpora areas, as some youth were killed in Baramulla. Nobody except children were allowed to move in the locality. Khalid was inside the house up till 2 pm, but unfortunately after having lunch he left for playing cricket with his friends. He along with three other children of our locality left together for stadium, which is situated across the Sopore Bridge. According to the eyewitnesses, as soon as they had reached near the bridge they had found some youth at one end of the old bridge clashing with the CRPF troopers. They had watched this and had moved ahead to cross the bridge. All the four kids were so small that they could not comprehend that those CRPF troopers can hurt them.”

He added: “The moment they had reached at the centre of the bridge some CRPF troopers from the other end of bridge had boarded an ambulance vehicle and had cross over from the new bridge to this side in order to apprehend the stone pelters. On seeing the troopers approaching them the stone pelters instantly fled away but my son along with three other kids were trapped in the middle of the old bridge. From both sides of the bridge CRPF troopers ran towards them.  The other three children were elder than my son, who jumped into the water to avoid the troopers, but my son couldn’t do so. He had caught up a log fixed beneath the bridge and hanged himself with it to hid himself from troopers. The troopers when failed to catch any youth. According to the eyewitnesses who were watching from the banks of river, a trooper had spotted my son hanging with the log. He had struck him on the head and hands with his stick. With the result my son had fell down into the river and died. Had my son earlier dived into the river he could have been saved like his other three friends but alas! He couldn’t.”

According to the family members, they recovered Khalid’s dead body on July 3 from Jehlum River at Gantamulla Uri. His head was badly damaged. There were grave injury marks on his forehead and spinal cord. They further said that the callous troopers had beaten him severely without paying any heed to his innocent face and age. 

“On the evening of June 30, when my son didn’t return home I searched him everywhere and when found nothing I approached police station Sopore and filed a missing report. Next day, I contacted the other three children who were accompanying my son to stadium. The kids revealed everything to me as how the incident happened. Even during my son’s search in the river some eyewitnesses also affirmed that my son was beaten by a CRPF trooper after which he had submerged. It is apparent that my son was murdered by the troopers, but nobody from police or administration ordered any investigation into the killing. Despite continuous protests and demand for investigation nothing has been done to nab the culprit. Even if the enquiry would have been ordered, there was no point of punishing the culprits because I have seen in many such cases not a single person has ever been punished.” grieved Mohammad Sharif. 

A group of locals said in unison, “When people had gathered at a place across the bridge and were waiting for the arrival of Khalid’s dead body, the troopers without any provocation resorted to teargas shelling and merciless thrashing resulted into injuries to 30 persons at least”. They also alleged that police fired some bullets upon the gathering, which caused critical injuries to few persons.   
BUDGAM YOUTH DISAPPPEARS FROM DELHI

On July 7, a Kashmiri youth Zahoor Ahmad Mir (25) son of Ghulam Nabi resident of Galwanpora, Sepdan Budgam disappeared after he left for his routine private job in a BPO (Business Processing Operation) of Vodafone company from his rented house at Laxminagar, New Delhi. Since then his whereabouts are not known. Zahoor after completing Masters in History from Kashmir University had moved to Delhi to pursue higher studies in some University in New Delhi. To meet the expenses he joined the Vodafone company and had been working with it from past two months. Zahoor’s family members were running from pillar to post but without any success. 
Till the end of June residents of Galwanpora Sepdan Budgam continuously staged protests to seek missing youth’s whereabouts and appealed State Government and Delhi administration to trace the youth. Regarding the incident the concerned police station at Shakarpora, New Delhi has registered a case vide FIR No. 355/2009 under section 365 IPC.

Concerning Zahoor’s disappearance, a reporter of The Informative Missive visited Sepdan, Budgam and talked to his family. Ghulam Nabi, father of Zahoor Ahmad stated: “After completing Masters Degree in History from Kashmir University, my son went to New Delhi on March 4, 2009 with two books to seek admission in M. Phil in some University. After reaching Delhi he started to stay with his best friend, Showkat Ahmad Bhat of Dooru, Sepdan Budgam, who had rented a flat at Ramesh Park Street No. 8, R 175/5 in Laximinagar Delhi. Showkat has been doing his MBA in IIMS and was also doing part time Job with Vodafone company. While my son was trying for admission in different universities, his friend Showkat suggested him to work as part-timer in order to meet his expenses. Then Showkat got him recruited as a call center executive with Aiges, a business processing unit of Vodafone company in Noida. In the company his working shift was scheduled from 4am to 2pm.”

He added: “My son used to get a call from transport department of the Vodafone company one hour prior to his scheduled reporting time, so that he will be ready by the time taxi would reach to pick him from (stop at U-Turn road) near ITO bridge in Laxminagar. On the fateful morning of July 7, he left to board the company cab and since then he was never seen again. In the evening of July 7, when he didn’t returned back to the flat, his friends got worried. They contacted his cell phone which was switched off. Then they contacted Zahoor’s office but they were told that he had not reached there that day. Showkat had tried for two days to locate him but failed. We at home were also perturbed as Zahoor didn’t call for two days (July 7 and 8), as he used to call every evening. When Showkat failed to find him he called up my nephew, Firdous Ahmad and informed him about Zahoor disappearance.” 
      Javaid Ahmad, Zahoor’s younger brother stated: “News of Zahoor’s disappearance shocked us. On the same day my paternal uncle, Ghulam Ahmad Mir hired a car and left for Delhi along with his friend, Ghulam Rasool and my maternal uncle, Abdul Ahad. On reaching Delhi they directly went to the concerned police station at Shakarpora and met SHO, Ved Bhushan. Zahoor’s friends had already registered a case there but no progress was made by the police.” 

Javaid added: “After police started investigation, they first screened my brothers call records (mobile no. 09911892473), bank/ATM details and also contacted his company. The investigation disclosed that he had withdrawn Rs. 500 from an ATM on July 7 at around 2:48 am and within 18 seconds he had another transaction of Rs. 4000. As per call records, he first had received a confirmation call from his employer, to which he had responded that he will come to the office. He had received another call from the cab driver at 2:58 am and according to the driver, Zahoor had told him to wait for 5 minutes but when he failed to reach, he again called him but his cell was switched off. The driver moved to pick other employees and he was the last person who heard from him.”

Ghulam Mohammad Mir, Zahoor’s uncle said that they met Delhi Police Commissioner, Y. S. Dadwal, who assured them of making every effort to trace him out. He had also told them that Delhi police has flashed alert to all police stations to locate Zahoor, but weeks have passed and the family is still clueless.

Worried mother of Zahoor, Raja Begum grieved, “It was July 6 when I heard form him last. In last conversation, he enquired about my health and also asked how the studies of his two younger brothers were going on. I am desperate to hear from him, otherwise I would die. My beloved son went to New Delhi for a better future and to keep us happy, but we were unaware that fate would meet us in that way. Despite facing many hardships my husband had worked day in day out so that our children could receive good education and will keep our head high with pride, but we don’t know who shattered our hopes. My son was never involved in any anti-social activity. He was a very nice and intelligent student. His conduct and credentials can be verified from anybody right from Kashmir to Delhi. Delhi Police authorities assured us that they will find my son but till date nothing has been done.” 

The family has met top state ministers to take up the matter. The offices of Chief Minister, Rural Development and Panchayats were also contacted. The state ministers assured the family of every possible help. The state Law Minister told media that the State Government will take up the matter with Delhi government. But the family is still clueless about Zahoor’s fate. 
STUDENT SUCCUMBS, BARAMULLA TOLL 4
July 1: Injured on June 29 in police and CRPF firing Amir Rasid, 19, s/o Abdul Rashid Mir of Tawheed Gunj succumb to his injuries in the SKIMS, Soura. He breathened his last at 5 am on July 1 in a hospital where he was under intensive medical care.  At least fourty persons including two women sustained injuries when police fired teargas shell upon the Amir’s funeral congregation prayers, which was followed by clashes. 

Amir was a student of BA first year in Degree College Baramulla is survived by five sisters and aged parents.  

On June 29, Amir Rashid received critically head injury when police and troops fired to crush the demonstration at Baramulla protesting against the misbehaviour with a woman by a police official. In the incident three persons died and scores got injured. Among the injured Amir Rashid succumb to his injuries on July 1, in the Sher Kashmir Institute of Medical Sciences (SKIMS) Soura where he was admitted for treatment.  

The moment his body reached his native village; a public announcement was made asking people to defy the curfew and participate in the funeral prayers of Amir. People in thousands including women and children took to streets and defied the curfew imposed after June 29 firing incident. 

Reports said, as the funeral prayers of Amir was being offered at a local graveyard, police fired numerous teargas shells on the mourners further flaring the anger. 

Groups of youth staged demonstrations to protest Amir’s death and subsequent police action. The protestors tried to march towards the new town, however, the personnel of J&K Armed Police, resorted to lathi (cane) charge, besides firing scores of teargas shells to disperse the mob. 

In retaliation, the protesters responded with stones on the police triggering violent clashes at Cement Bridge. The clashes also spread to other areas further worsen the situation. In the clashes at least 40 people including two women were injured. One of the women received teargas shell on her head was identified as Anjum wife of Zahoor Ahmad of Qazihamam, Old Town. She was shifted to Srinagar hospital.  Amir’s death also triggered clashes in Sopore area of Baramulla district besides various places of Srinagar. 

BARAMULLA ENQUIRY REPORT HIGHLIGHTS
On July 28, the inquiry report of the Baramulla killings was claimed to be submitted to the Deputy Commissioner Baramulla by the inquiry officer and additional deputy commissioner, Muhammad Ashraf Shuntoo. However, the report was not made public. 

 
The DC Baramulla Lateef-uz-Zaman Deva is likely to forward the report to the government on July 29. Sources said the 49 page report has noted the allegations of misbehavior leveled by a woman, Haseena, against the police. The alleged misbehavior had triggered demonstrations crushed with brute force by police and CRPF.   

 The report has noted the number of demonstrators in different localities, involvement of public in stone pelting, impact of stone pelting on operational duties of armed forces. The inquiry has also assessed if the use of fire arms by the police and troopers was proportionate to the strength of the protesters, whether the forces followed the Standard Operating Procedure for the maintenance of law and order, and the body organs of the protesters that were hit in the police firing.

One of the eyewitnesses deposed before the inquiry officer on July 5, claimed that he would identify the ‘killer’ vehicle from which the bullets were fired on the protesters near the Cement Bridge on June 29. Reports said he narrated before the inquiry officer how the peaceful protesters were fired upon on that fateful day.

The preliminary investigations have revealed that 82 bullets were missing from the ammunition records of the CRPF patrol that was deployed in Baramulla town on June 29 when three youth were killed, sources told media. They said the inquiry officer after going through the records summoned the assistant commandant of 153 battalion of CRPF, J S Rawat and recorded his statement.

Meanwhile; the additional deputy commissioner decided to go for identification parade of ‘Rakshak’ vehicles. They said most witnesses who deposed before the inquiry officer had revealed that bullets were fired from an armoured vehicle on that fateful day.

The parade, according to the reports, is likely to be held at district police lines, where the witnesses would be asked to identify the vehicle. However, it couldn’t be ascertained whether the ‘Rakshak’ vehicles used by the paramilitary CRPF would be the part of the parade or not.  

Two CRPF officers and three police constables and an assistant sub inspector of Baramulla police station were questioned by the inquiry officer, and his assistant Sheikh Faisal Qayoom, regarding their deployment on that fateful day. The woman, who had leveled allegations of harassment against a policeman of police station Baramulla on June 28, also deposed before the inquiry officer.

However, the inquiry report was not made public. 

TORTURE TESTIMONIES

Name: Raja Begum

Age: 50

Education: None

Occupation: Home maker

Civilian/Militant: Civilian (no association with militants)

Association: None

Religion: Islam

Nationality: Kashmiri/Indian

Address: Handwara, Kashmir

Date of Interview: 14th April, 2008

On August 5, 2008 there was curfew in the valley during which the military had warned the people of Handwara region to stay inside their houses. After the daily Namaaz (prayers) at the masjid, Raja’s husband came back for an afternoon nap to the house. The family heard a child’s wail, who was being beaten by alleged men from the armed forces. The neighbours had already gathered and were raising slogans against the troops. Raja’s husband, hearing the commotion, came out of the house to check what was going on. During this time, the army had started using gunfire and tear gas against the people. In this process, a stray bullet hit Raja’s husband in the stomach. Raja’s son and few relatives transported him to the district hospital with their bare hands. There were immediate agitations against this incident in the neighbourhood and near the hospital. The entire family, including Raja, reached the hospital and saw the police trying to control the crowds. Tear gas was the first phase of the police’s attack on people, as claimed by Raja. She rushed to the ICU to check on her husband while she came to know that police had locked her relatives in the bathroom of the hospital in an attempt to stop them from converging in the ICU. She claims that she then heard that her husband was to be shifted to another hospital in Srinagar as his condition had worsened. She accompanied her husband in an ambulance along with a neighbour and was on the way to Srinagar hospital. When they had completed forty-five kilometres he took his last breath.

The body was taken to Palhalan hospital. It took her four hours to get the body back to her village as at every check naka, they delayed the process. This according to her was primarily done so that the situation in the village could be controlled. After reaching the village, she came to know that about fifteen of her relatives were in police custody. The police had also beaten her daughter and other members of the family. She herself had suffered back injuries due to the tear gas as well as the commotion that followed. 

According to her, there is no official report of the incident as well as of the post-mortem done. She hasn’t filed a complaint with any authority as her son is in government service and she is worried that they would be pressurised to withdraw the case. There is also reason to believe that those arrested during the hospital incident would be further prosecuted. While she has received offers of compensation from non government actors, she hasn’t taken any. 

Name: Ali Mohammad Bandey

Age: 48

Education: 

Occupation: Farmer

Civilian/Militant: Civilian (no association with militants)

Association: With earlier protests on human rights violations

Religion: Islam

Nationality: Kashmiri/Indian

Address: Handwara

Date of Interview: 14th April, 2008

August, 2008. Ali Bandey was coming back from the Masjid when he heard the Army firing at civilians. He was beaten by the Army 56 RR personnel in the protest that followed. He was taken to the hospital with the other injured people. At the hospital, there was an agitation against the incident especially with the reference to the injured people. To control the crowd, the police used force as well as tear gas. Ali Bandey was further beaten up in this process. The police used gaze rods which are transparent and cannot be seen especially by media. Ali says that there were about twenty-thirty people in the hospital. During the police firing, he was shot in the hand. The doctors just dressed his hand with some tape. For the rest of the night, he was in the hospital. The next day morning, he went on his own to Srinagar to get treated on his own expense. Till date, his injury comes in the way of his work and he has still not completely recovered from it.

Ali believes that the reason for persecution was that they are oppressed people.

BARAMULLA SHOOTING AFTERMATH 

TALES OF FEW VICTIM FAMILIES 

· ORPHAN SIBLINGS LOSE ‘LITTLE FATHER’

July 2: To that fatal police bullet that was fired at an angry mob on June 29 evening, two young siblings have lost their ‘little father’, Saleem Rashid Ahangar. “Both our parents left us long back. It was Saleem Baya (brother) who was the father figure. The police have snatched our little father from us,” says his 22-year-old sister Masarat Jan. While comforting her younger brother, Aslam, who is profusely sobbing, Masarat breaks as she recalls how Saleem would insist that he would never let his siblings feel orphaned. “Today,” she adds, “are orphaned…O my God! Kill these policemen who killed my Saleem Baya.” 

Saleem was sustaining his family on a limited salary he would earn from a private cellular company, Tata Indicom. “He was very keen on Masarat’s marriage. She was shortly going to be married off. Deedi (sister) would feel bad and tell us how she can leave us alone, but Saleem Baya was very keen on that,” says Saleem’s younger brother Aslam.

Sameer Ahmad, Saleem’s cousin who is an eyewitness to his death, says that Saleem was shot from a police vehicle and wasn’t allowed to be taken to the hospital in time, which led to his death.

 “When my sister gets married I will be the most satisfied person in this world. He always longed to see his sister in bridal wear but alas! Death did not allow him to realize his dreams,” says one of Saleem’s close friends.

· CRPF SNATCH FATHER FROM UNBORN CHILD

July 3: Lali Jan of Khanpora, Baramulla is carrying in her womb a child who was orphaned before birth: the CRPF troopers murdered the father on June 30. “I don’t know if I should really give birth to the child or kill myself; they snatched the father of the child even before it could see light of the world,” said Lali whose 24-year old husband, Fayaz Ahmad Gojri, a labourer, was killed by the troopers during a peaceful demonstration over the alleged sexual harassment of a woman by police.

“When the clashes were going on, the troopers went berserk and fired indiscriminately on protesters. Fayaz was hit in the chest. We watched helplessly while he bled to death. The CRPF didn’t allow us to take him to hospital, nor did they permit ambulance to enter the area,” says Nazir Ahmed, neighbor of the deceased.

“We pleaded with them for more than ten minutes. But they beat up everyone who came in their way including friends and relatives of Fayaz. They fired teargas shells at us. It is possible that he would have been saved had these brutal troopers allowed us to taken him to hospital,” he added.

Lali is inconsolable and as women try to soothe her in a room of her modest cottage. The couple’s first child, a girl, had died soon after birth, but the news of his wife’s pregnancy had made Fayaz happy. “We were very happy and he would often talk about plans he had for the baby,” Lali said, “What was his crime?”

The police have registered murder case against CRPF troopers in Baramulla police station in connection with this murder.
· WITH TARIQ’S DEATH OUR WORLD FELL APART: FAMILY

July 3: The family members of Tariq Ahmad Malik, who was killed in police firing, are shattered by his untimely death. “For us the world has fallen apart, “said Tariq’s elderly father, Saifudin Malik. Tariq, who was the only breadwinner of the family comprising his parents and three brothers and a sister, was shot in the abdomen. The bullet had pierced through his spinal cord and he succumbed to injuries in the hospital.

“The troopers killed my son in cold blood. They did not even show mercy for his innocence,” says Tariq’s tearful father. Tariq’s mother said, “He was my only child with whom I shared every secret. He would always come to me and ask me if I need anything. I had a lot of dreams about him and he was only one who could have made those dreams come true. But...”she pauses until she faints.

Tariq’s brother said that their brother was the only hope of better future for the family. “He worked as a contractor to sustain us all. But now we have no one to fall back upon”, said his brother Tanveer Ahmad.

TEENAGER RESURFACE
On July 4, in a dramatic way, Basharat Ahmad Bhat son of Muhammad Maqbool Bhat of Chakpath Laripora who disappeared from 36 Rashtriya Rifles custody after being called to the camp on June 28 resurfaced. 

The disappearance of Bashatat had almost driven to suicide his ailing mother Shahmala. “I would have committed suicide, if Basharat would not have returned,” Basharat’s mother Sahmala said. Sahamala had has already lose elder son Nayeem Ahmad, who suicides to evade SOG harassment. 
According to Basharat’s brother Showkat Ahmad, on the night of July 4, they received a call around 10 pm that Basharat has been found and he was lying in the house of one Fatah Dar.

“When we reached there, we learned that he had dragged himself to the door of Fatah Dar’s house, and cried ‘save me, army will kill me’. They had tied his hands and legs with rope. People had found that foam was coming out of his mouth, as he had been forced to drink alcohol and probably poison,” Showkat told media. Showkat said the locals had spotted the gypsies of 36 RR, the battalion in whose camp Basharat went missing on June 28, passing in the area around the time he was found. People shifted him to the district hospital Islamabad. Police didn’t allow media to go inside the ward where Basharat was being hospitalized.

Earlier on July 1, the Chief Minister asked the army to produce, dead or alive, Basharat Ahmad. “If he is dead, army will have to produce his body and if he has left the camp alive then they will have to produce the evidence of his departure,” the CM said.

 “We have asked army to keep the camp open for media and commoners so that everyone can see the ground situation. If the boy departed from the camp then sniffer dogs can locate his whereabouts,” the CM told media.

Basharat disappearance triggered massive protests in the area for days and the locals of the area formed Elaqai Welfare Committee (EWC) to seek whereabouts of Basharat.  To prevent the agitation state administration imposed strict restrictions on movement of people in Larkipora and adjacent areas.

Interestingly, army of 36 RR camp, meanwhile, launched manhunt and arrested three persons of a family including a woman in this connection in South Kashmir. A local shopkeeper was also arrested.

Several persons were made to parade in front of the trained dogs. Army also questioned Muhammad Shaban Wagay of Lok Bhawan, his son Mehraj Ahmad Wagay and his daughter. However the lady was later set free. Army also arrested Farooq Ahmad Khanday son of Wali Muhammad Khanday, a shopkeeper of Larkipora for inquiry about Bhat. 

Muhammad Maqbool Bhat Basharat’s father said, “Basharat’s return gave us a reason to live, as I had already lost a young son who poisoned himself to put an end to the Special Operation Group (SOG) harassment.” Recalling the tragic day when his elder son Nayeem committed suicide he said, “I was informed that Nayeem had consumed some poisonous substance and was admitted at SK Institute of Medical Sciences, Soura. On reaching there, I found him dead.” 
80 YEAR OLD WOMAN RAPED: 2 SPOS ARRESTED AFTER IDENTIFICATION PARADE

July 4: An eighty year old woman was allegedly raped by two Special Police Officers (SPOs) of Jammu and Kashmir reportedly under the influence of liquor in Marmat area of Doda. Both the SPOs were arrested after being subjected to identification parade in presence of the senior officers from civil and police administration.

Though the bizarre incident took place on the intervening night of July 2 and 3 and police was informed by the locals on the next day no FIR was registered till today. The administration swung into action only after a strong protest demonstration by the local residents against the inaction of the police. Hundreds of villagers held protest demonstrations against police demanding arrest of two police personnel for alleged rape of an elderly woman in the village.

Official sources, preferring anonymity, told media that an elderly woman, identified as Zaitoona Begum Wife of Shams Din of Mangota village in Marmat was found nude and unconscious by her neighbourers in her home on July 3.The matter was brought into the notice of a nearby police post. The matter, officials said, was being investigated but no arrest was made till today.

Sources said that local residents lodged a protest demonstration, against the inaction of police. A team of senior officers headed by Assistant Commissioner Revenue (ACR) Doda Shahid Saleem Dar rushed to the spot to take stock of the situation. Sources said that the ACR immediately directed the identification parade of the police personnel who were on duty in the area during the intervening night of July 2 and 3. The victim identified two SPOs, who were immediately taken into custody and a case for committing rape. The accused were identified as Joginder Kumar and Daljeet Singh.

Police has taken cognizance of matter and lodged the report, ACR Doda told media, the victim has been subjected to medical examination and we are waiting for the FSL report. Sources, preferring anonymity, said that the two SPOs, working with Special Task Force of Jammu and Kashmir police, were intoxicated when they barged into the house of the victim. Finding the victim alone the accused allegedly committed rape on her and left the house leaving the victim unconscious. The victim, sources said, is a divorced lady who is living in her house alone from last more than three decades.
WOMAN’S RAPE, MURDER ROCKS KUPWARA
July 9: Alleged rape and murder of a BA 3rd year orphan student, Amina allegedly by a Territorial Army trooper at Doolipora Trehgam triggered strong protests in Kupwara.Police has arrested the accused trooper of 160 TA battalion, Ashiq Hussain Pir and a murder case vide FIR No 49/2009 has been registered in police station Trehgam. Amid a complete strike following the incident, at least 30 persons including 10 CRPF personnel were injured in clashes.  
According to relatives of the victim, around 3.30 A M, the accused forced entry into the room by breaking open the window, where Amina was sleeping and gagged her mouth with scarf and raped and murdered her. They said that at least a dozen troopers had cordoned the house, when Ashiq was committing the crime inside the room. 

Victim’s brother, Mohammad Arshad Masoodi said that he broke open the door that was bolted from inside after he heard cries and noise. "She was lying naked and unconscious and bore violence marks all over her body. I caught hold of the accused and hit him at his back but other troopers barged into the room and threatened to open fire and fled from the window. The accused left behind his identity card and mobile phone. My sister who had received serious injuries in her head did not regain consciousness and died moments later," Arshad said. 

Earlier the angry protestors did not allow the police to take the body for post mortem. It was only after DC and SP Kupwara reached Trehgam and assured them that stern action will be taken against the troopers; they allowed police to take the body for autopsy. Amid anti-army and pro-freedom slogans Amina was laid to rest in her ancestral village Doolipora with thousands of people attended the Nimaz-e-Jinazah (Funeral Prayers).
Following the incident, strong protests were held against TA trooper at Trehgam, Kupwara and Kralpora. The students of Degree College Kupwara clashed with CRPF and police at Kupwara before marching towards Trehgam. Next day on July 10, the protests were also joined the Kupwara Bar Association. 
The entire town observed a complete shutdown and the protesters damaged windowpanes of many vehicles suspending the traffic movement. They were demanding stern action against the accused. 
Police sources however said, the TA trooper along with dozen other jawans barged into the house of Amina and first raped her and then killed. "He was himself in civvies and the other men were in uniform. After committing the crime, the trooper hit on her head and abdomen and she died on spot," police sources said. 

Superintendent of Police Kupwara reached the spot and pacified the protestors. "We have arrested the trooper and registered a murder case," SP Kupwara Uttam Chand told media. 

District magistrate Kupwara Showkat Malik also confirmed the protests against the rape and murder. "There were protests in Trehgam and Kupwara; however they were peaceful," he said. 

Fearing apprehensions of large scale protests by the students, district administration has announced closure of all educational institutions in the district. "All the educational institutions will remain closed tomorrow also," DM said.

On July 23, a local court has sent the Territorial Army soldier accused of raping and murdering Amina to sub-jail Baramulla on 14 days judicial remand. The judicial magistrate Kupwara sent the accused Ashiq Hussain Pir to the Baramulla jail on July 23.

PROTEST AGAINST 'MOLESTATION' BY TROOPS

July 26: Hundreds of people took to streets in Kralgund area of Handwara after Rashtriya Rifles troopers allegedly molested a group of women in the area, a local news agency said.

The news agency said that women had gone to nearby forests in Gundchabotra. A patrol party of 30 RR intercepted them and molested them. As the word spread, hundreds of people took to streets and held demonstrations against army and government.

Superintendent of Police (SP) reached the spot and tried to pacify the protestors’, however, the protesters didn’t pay heed to him and continued their protest. Unable to quell the protestors, police used force to disperse them. 

NIGHT PROTESTS IN KUPWARA

July 21: Night protests erupted in Jugtiyal village in north Kashmir's Kupwara district when army personnel with their faces covered, allegedly barged inside a marriage party and tried to take pictures of the women folk present during the celebrations. 

According to media, several army men barged inside the house of Mohammad Abdullah Khan son of Abdul Rehman Khan on Monday evening (July 20) during the marriage ceremony of his daughter. The army men allegedly broke the windowpanes of a vehicle which was part of the Baraat. 

Reports added that the uniformed men later allegedly entered a room where women folk were singing traditional songs. The troopers allegedly tried to take their pictures, however, the men objected, leading to a scuffle. Later the people took to streets and staged protests against the army. 

Mohammad Abdullah Khan said that army barged inside the house at 6:45 PM. "When they started taking pictures of girls with their cameras, I asked them to kill me first then take the pictures," he said. "The troops later took the pictures of men and threatened us of dire consequences," Khan added. 

Senior Superintendent of Police (SSP), Kupwara Uttam Chand said there was no veracity in the allegations. He said, "As per the reports, after the noise of fire crackers, the army had gone to check the matter and had just asked the family to inform it about the function. No civilian or family have even registered a complain with me or at the police station."  

Meanwhile army spokesman said that all such allegations are wrong and army is to protect people not to harm them. 

YOUNGER SON POISONED, ELDER IN CUSTODY, SHAMIMA NARRATES A TALE OF ATROCITIES

July 25: Her younger son was poisoned to death, her elder and the only surviving son is under police custody. The middle aged Shamima Akhter pleads her son should not be handed over to Jammu police. Belonging from Jammu, Gandhi Nagar Nai Basti, the family is left with a 16-year-old daughter and her mother who accused Jammu Police of terrorizing them and finally took refuge in Kashmir.

Shamima said the fear of being killed by police in a fake encounter kept her 22-year-old student son Saleem Sheikh away from Jammu and Kashmir for almost two years. Seven days ago when he landed in Kashmir, Police arrested him from Sanat Nagar area for unknown reasons. Two years back, Saleem left his home on a motorcycle with a Sikh friend and met a fellow at a few minutes distance from his home.  

“His Sikh friend had some hot argument with a person whom he injured with his Kripan. I’m not sure whether he died on the spot but investigations could not prove either of them guilty. My son’s Sikh friend was bailed out but police was in search of Saleem,” said Shamima.

“Bribed by a local, Bittu Kapadia, a police officer of City Police, Vishnesh forced Pradhan (a close friend of Saleem) to arrange a meeting with Saleem. As he arrived, policemen in civvies had cordoned the entire area. They shot bullets at him, and he was hit in his arm and neck. He still managed to escape,” Shamima said.

Shamima accused that Vishnesh attempted to kill Saleem in a fake encounter and publicly announced that Saleem had links with militants and opened fire at police at Bus Stand Jammu. She said her younger son died a few months after. With tears in her eyes, Shamima said: “Tariq’s death was not a happenstance, but a planned murder.”

“Tariq’s death was a trap that was planned to trace Saleem’s location. When Tariq’s body was being buried, Vishnesh cordoned the graveyard and arrested two guys from there,” Shamima said. Shamima lost her husband 16 years back and since then she has been bringing up her three children.

SHO Sadder, Nazir Ahmad denied having arrested any person Saleem Sheikh during his tenure as station incharge at Sadder. However, the family revealed that they met Saleem Friday evening at Sadder Police Station.  

“I met him and also the SHO. He assured me that he won’t handover Saleem to Jammu Police. Police had registered no FIR until then.”
BUNKER FENCE CONSUMES OFFICIAL 
‘BARBED WIRE AROUND CRPF CAMP WAS ELECTRIFIED’
July 23: An irrigation official was electrocuted when he accidentally grasped electrified barb wire fencing of a CRPF at Hamadania Colony Bemina.Police have registered a case of negligence, while the people protested by observing a strike. Witnesses said that the 32-year-old Fayaz Ahmad Bhat of Khalidabad, Bhagaat slipped from the banks of the Bemina canal he and six of his colleagues were measuring.However, he grabbed the barb wire around the CRPF camp to stop his slide into the waters.

“The wire was connected to electricity. He was taken to hospital in half-dead condition and he later succumbed,” said an eyewitness, Noor Muhammad. After the incident, all the shops in the area closed down and the residents started dismantling the fencing. But when they tried to bring down the fencing of the bunker, the CRPF troopers stopped them, triggering a demonstration. The protesters blocked the traffic and shouted slogans against the CRPF.

The CRPF camp housing 44 battalion has been recently deployed in the area. The residents said the troopers have connected barb wire to a supply line from a nearby power transformer. “We avoid going close to the camp, but people who are not aware are prone to fatal electrocution like what happened today. If the wiring is not removed it may consume more lives,” they added.

Fayaz was working as a helper in the Irrigation and Flood Control department and he was lone bread winner of his family. He is survived by his wife, mother, and a 3-year-old daughter. The body was taken to police control room for post mortem and it was handed over to the family for last rites.

Relatives of Fayaz said, “He left for the job in the morning but only hours after his departure we came to know about his death. We don’t know what happened to him. All we have been told is that he was electrocuted,” said a relative of Fayaz.

The commandant of the CRPF, P K Mandal, said the wire was not electrified for security reasons. “It is Just an accident. Our power supply line passes underneath the barbed wire and its insulation may have got damaged, resulting in electrification of the concertina wires,” he said.

Sub-Inspector of police at Parimpora police station said the police have registered a case of accident and negligence under section 304 Crpc. The Senior Superintendent of Police Srinagar, Riyaz Bedaar, said the police would investigate.

“We are waiting for a statement of the employees who were accompanying him at the spot. After that we can fix the blame,” he said. Asked about the electrification of the fencing for security reasons, he said, “We don’t know anything about it yet but we will investigate into it.”

BARAMULLA DEMO OVER ARREST OF YOUTHS

July 28: Hundreds of people demonstrated in old Baramulla town against the arrest of youths who had participated in protests that erupted over the alleged molestation of woman last month and in which four people were killed by CRPF. The killings are being probed by the district administration. The protesters, including a large number of females, assembled in the main chowk of the town and asked police to stop harassment of the residents and arrest of youths.

“Police should realize that people were protesting against their brutality that devoured lives of four innocent people. Government has ordered a probe so what wrong have people done,” said Khursheed Ahmad.

The protesters later met the Tehsildar Baramulla and informed him that dozens of youngsters have been arrested and the residents harassed by police.
 

Abdul Raheem Najar of old town told the Tehsildar that police arrested his son Muhammad Amin during Amarnath land agitation last year, and though he was set free from Kotbalwal Jail a few days back and shifted to Baramulla jail, the Baramulla police is not releasing him. The Tehsildar, Ahsan-ul-Haq, said, “Seeing the concern of the protests over the arrests, I requested the police to furnish the details of the detainees, but the same was not provided by the police.”

STONE CUTTER RENDERED STONE BELOW CHEST

July 30: When, after firing at him in the back, policemen kept hitting him with bamboo sticks and rifle butts, Manzoor Ahmad Bhat, a stone cutter of Khadniyar village, felt death was certain for him. Today, he prays for it. He cries the moment his wife turns and repositions his body to prevent bed sores.

“On June 19, there was complete shutdown in the town in response to the Baramulla chalo call of the Hurriyat Conference led by Syed Ali Shah Geelani. Some stray incidents of stone pelting had taken place in the morning. But, when I was walking near the Cement Bridge, Baramulla, on my way to my workplace, a stone quarry at Khanpora, there was no clash and the atmosphere was quiet. Still, they (police) fired at me. I felt total numbness below the chest. Only when my arms fell over the legs did I feel these were in tact, but lifeless,” Manzoor told media at his home.

“Even after firing at me, the police men kept hitting me with gun butts and lathis before lifting me in their vehicle,” Manzoor said, adding they rushed him to the Sher-i-Kashmir Institute of Medical Sciences, Soura, Srinagar. “The bullet, which is still lodged in my spinal chord, has paralyzed me chest down for life,” Manzoor said, adding that after a 6-hour operation, the doctors had decided against removing the bullet from my body as it would further damage my torn spinal chord.”

He was the sole breadwinner of the family comprising his wife and aged father. “Who is going to take care of them,” he asked Manzoor’s father, Ghulam Mohi-ud-din, is worried too. At a time when he could have expected his only son to take care, he has to look after the cripple throughout his life. “I don’t have the money to buy a wheelchair for my paralyzed son. Some injections cost about Rs 2500 each and he needs several shots of these. There is nobody to help us out,” he told media.

 “What sin had my son committed that even after shooting at him, our own policemen beat him up with their canes and rifle butts,” Mohi-ud-din asked, adding that he had left home in search of bread for the family and was not even remotely connected with the violent incidents that had taken place in the town earlier in the day. He said there was no hope for the family as it had virtually lost the sole bread earner.

SOLDIERS POKE GUNS IN MLA’S CHEST
July 8: Rashtriya Rifles soldiers poked cocked guns into chest of Member of Legislative Assembly (MLA) Engineer Abdul Rashid because he objected to beating of a civilian by the soldiers, triggering massive anti-army demonstration in the area.  

    
 Eyewitnesses told media that Er. Abdul Rashid after attending a school function stopped at Mawar on seeing a group of soldiers beating the civilian who was driving a Maruti car. The MLA objected to beating of the driver by the troopers, which led to heated arguments between troopers of 30 RR led by a Major who has assumed a Muslim name, Bashir Khan. Witnesses said the MLA tried to rescue the civilian but soldiers continued to thrash him. “They cocked the guns on his chest and threatened him of dire consequences,” said Muhammad Altaf. 

   
 The MLA and the protesters staged sit-in in front of Handwara Police Station and refused to disperse till an FIR was registered against the accused Major. People of Rajwar also joined the protests. Demanding removal of Qalamabad army camp from the area, the protesters said the incident should serve an eye-opener opener for the world because even “a legislator is not secure here.” 

   The protesters said the Major has terrorized the people of the area. “This Major of Qalamabad camp, who calls himself Bashir Khan, had spread reign of terror in area. He is seeking identification card even from women, and has asked farmers to remove corn crop from fields. People are being beaten without provocation by the soldiers,” Er. Rashid told media.

  
 “This rogue has crossed all limits of brutality and tyranny and my people will not tolerate this high handedness and will continue to fight against repression,” he said. The protesters said the Major enters into houses during day when the men are out to work. “Our women are feeling insecure. He snatches identity cards of people and then calls them to the camp,” they said.

The SP Handwara, Muhammad Rafiq Vakil, said he didn’t know the facts. 

When contacted by media, the accused Major on July 7 about the complaints of harassment by people. The Major said, “I am armed with AFSPA (Armed Forces Special Powers Act). I can enter any home.”

INQUIRY REPORT INDICTS ARMY FOR MURDERING KUPWARA’S FAYAZ TAILOR
July 07: Police has indicted troops of 18 RR in the February 1, 2009 killing of a Kupwara tailor Fayaz Ahmad Mir. The family members of the victim have demanded immediate punishment to the guilty troopers.Fayaz, 28, was killed at Zab Khurhama Lolab area of north Kashmir’s Kupwara district outside his residence.

Referring to the report his office obtained from Dy SP Kupwara vide his office Letter No 09-2221 dated 29 April 2009, SP Kupwara in his verification report to Deputy Commissioner Kupwara vide Letter No Confi-2A/09-467 dated 4 May 2009 mentions that Fayaz was killed by troops of Army’s 18 RR unit on February 1, 2009 at Zab Khurhama.

In his letter, the SP writes that the deceased Fayaz, or any of his close relatives, was not involved in any kind of subversive (anti-national) activities. He mentions that as per the records of the concerned police station no criminal case stands registered against Fayaz.

Meanwhile, Fayaz’s family has demanded stern punishment against the guilty troopers.Fayaz’s mother Saja Begum said: “Fayaz’s last words were that six army men fired at him from point blank.” She denounced the army’s claim that Fayaz was killed in relentless firing of militants. “There was neither any cross firing incident nor any movement of militants,” she said. “Chief Minister Omar Abdullah should personally intervene and ensure that the guilty troopers are hanged publicly.”

Fayaz is survived by his wife Tahira, 24, and four children Irfan, 9, Javaid, 8, Nida Jan, 7, and Saqib. The family lives in a shabby two-room hut. “My children trouble me posing questions about their father,” Tahira said. “I remember the days when I would be upset and Fayaz would console me. Now there is no one to console me.”

The family members said they have suffered immensely at the hands of troopers.Fayaz’s paternal uncle Zia Mir was killed allegedly by army who tied a bomb around him at Khorhama Chowk, they said. Zia was working as a porter with Army’s Kuligam post and, according to the family, had refused to obey army’s diktats.

Police had registered a case vide FIR No 03/09 Under Section 302 of RPC and started investigation to establish the circumstances that led to the killing of Fayaz. 
UNIFIED COMMAND MEETS
OMAR ABDULLAH SEEKS 1ST PHASE CRPF REPLACEMENT PLAN IN 10 DAYS.

July 1: Chairing the Unified Command meeting, the Chief Minister, Omar Abdullah, said the deployment plan of the police and paramilitary forces had to be re-worked as per the present situation which is a law and order situation and not related with militancy like in the 1990s.
“In the changed scenario, the police is supposed to be better equipped and trained to deal with law and order situation and as such a change in mindset of the force is also required,” the Chief Minister said, asking the director general of police, the D.G, CRPF and other concerned to formulate an effective plan for it within 10 days.
Omar directed placement of magistrates in every district, adding that for dealing with law and order situation, police should accompany the magistrate. “No law and order situation or protests should be dealt without the presence of a magistrate,” he emphasized.

The Chief Minister called for formulation of the Citizens’ Advisory Committees in every district and directed the deputy commissioners to flag this issue for immediate implementation.This, he said, would help develop rapport between the citizens and the administration and avoid misunderstandings that usually occur on sensitive issues relating to law and order.
The GoC 15 Corps,Lt Gen Bikram Singh; the Chief secretary,S.S.Kapur;the director general of police,Kuldeep Khoda,the DG,CID,Ashok Bhan,the Chief minister’s principal secretary,Khurshid Ahmad Ganai were among those present.

CUSTODIAL KILLING

POLICE ADMITS, COUNSEL DEMANDS PUNISHMENT TO WHOLE UNIT

July 27: In a rare confession Police submitted a report to High Court wherein they admitted that a Kangan resident Mohammad Sadiq Kasana was killed in custody by two SOG officials in 2000. However, the counsel of Kasan’s family asked court to punish the whole unit and a compensation of Rs 20 lakh be given to them. The HC has reserved its order. Deputy Superintendent Police Jagtar Singh and SPO Hakim Din, who were later, killed in an encounter, are the two accused officials. 

SOG comprising JK Police sleuths and troopers of 198 Battalion of CRPF on 9 November 2000 killed Kasana whose killing resulted in massive demonstration in Kangan area. The troopers and police at that time maintained that Kasana was killed in Choonth Waliwar locality, where SOG had taken Kasana for supposed recovery of arms and ammunition. “Kasana tried to flee from the spot but was fired upon by the SOG party and killed,” said the PRO of CRPF at that time. Following the massive protests Police filed FIR No.107/02 under section 302/RPC.

But the family member of Kasana contested this version, saying he was innocent and killed in custody. Subsequently they filed a writ petition before High Court in 2001. On the directions of HC, Police Station Kangan was asked to investigate the case. 

During the investigation, the copy of which was submitted before the HC too, Shafqat Hussain, the counsel defending the case on behalf of Kasana’s family said: “In the investigation, it was established that Kasana was killed in custody by DSP Jagtar Singh and SPO Hakim Din. The investigation labelled these two as main accused in the killing of Kasana.” 

He added: “Although the police report says that the two SOG men Singh and Din were the prime accused and were killed later on in different militancy related incidents. But police later on declared the case closed.” Hussain added: “Our contention is that the whole unit is guilty into the custodial death of Kasana and thus whole unit should be punished, not the two men, who are no more now.”

He said: “We filed another petition, saying that the whole unit should be declared guilty into the custodial murder of Kasana and a compensation of 20 lakh should be paid to victim’s family.” 

After hearing the both sides, Justice Hakim Imtiyaz reserved his final judgment into the case
DC WRITES TO ARMY WORK UNDER US

WE WORK INDEPENDENTLY WHEN NEEDED: ARMY

July 1: Deputy Commissioner Baramulla and army authorities in North Kashmir are on ‘warpath’ over the former’s direction to army to work under the supervision of executive magistrate. In the letter no:DMB/2009,the copy of which is in the possession of Rising Kashmir, Deputy Commissioner Baramulla wrote to GoC 19 Infantry Division Baramulla,”In view of orders communicated by Financial Commissioner (Home) and the requisition received from Senior Superintendent of Police Baramulla,it is requested kindly to assist the civil administration in maintenance of law and order in the areas of your respective responsibility within district Baramulla except in tehsil of Uri,Boniyar and Tangmarg which are not under curfew.”

The letter further reads “J&K police on the basis of deployment as has been made/may be made shall remain in the forefront at all respective locations brought under curfew with backup of Army in standby mode for flag marches/patrolling under the supervision of respective Executive Magistrates.”

The clause-to work under the supervision of an Executive magistrate-has not gone well with army and senior officials have strongly objected to it. Sources said Army authorities have taken strong exception to the directions from District Magistrate Baramulla and taken up the matter with Defence Ministry.

“When the situation in Baramulla town went out of Control, army was not accompanying the police. At any given situation, when army is asked to perform a particular task we do it independently and don’t work under the supervision of magistrates,” an army officer, pleading anonymity said.

GUJJAR, BAKERWAL MIGRATION MAY BECOME HISTORY
ARMY STOPPING NOMADS FROM VENTURING INTO GRAZING LANDS
July 25: Age old tradition of seasonal migration of Gujjar and Bakerwal along with their livestock to pasture lands spread across Jammu and Kashmir is on the brink of becoming history. Reason: The Army is not allowing nomads to venture into grazing lands resulting in 50 per cent reduction in the seasonal migration and thus rending people unemployed.

“The army has stopped Bakerwals from camping in many grazing areas of the State,” said Javid Rahi, Secretary Tribal Research and Cultural Foundation, an organization working for Gujjar and Bakerwals. “As a result there has been 50 per cent decline in seasonal movement of Bakerwals to the mountainous areas,” he said. “All those people who were barred from going to their dhoks (hutments) have come back. They are doing agrarian and labourer jobs in their areas.”

He said army has stopped Gujjars and Bakerwals in Keran, Kupwara, Bandipora, Karnah, Zojila, Poonch, Rajouri, Doda and many other places from migrating to their traditional bahaks and dhoks for grazing their animals. It has been an age old tradition that Gujjar and Bakerwal along with their livestock would commence their seasonal migration to pastures from Kashmir and Jammu region to the lush green grazing areas at the start of summers. Later, at the end of autumn as the snow starts blanketing higher reaches, these nomads return to plains. Detailing out reasons of decline, Rahi said army harassment was the primary factor in this regard.

“Most of grazing land is located in strategic locations along the Line of Control. They think Gujjars and Bakerwals will pose threat to them,” he said. “Apart from that, army, over the years has been annoying nomads.”

“The Gujjars are beaten, their horses taken to work free of cost for days together,” he said. “But nobody raises voice in favour of the voiceless,” Rahi said.

Terming it as injustice to tribal, Rahi said their livestock was declining and hundreds of Gujjars associated with the profession were rendered jobless. “Thus people are leaving this age old practice,” he said. 

President Jammu and Kashmir Gujjar United Front, Muhammad Aslam Chowdhry said army has occupied all good pasture lands of the State.Chowdhry said many reason were put forward by the army to stop nomads from visiting the grazing areas, especially militancy.

“Army says militant masquerade as Gujjars and move from one place to another. It says militants live with the nomads,” he said. “But these are mere allegations to stop tribals from using ages old grazing lands. “He said the army presence in grazing areas has jeopardized their lives.

“As a result many people have left the profession,” Chowdhry said. “We approached the concerned Deputy Commissioners and other administrative officials and informed them about the army atrocities. They often assure us that the government would make alternate arrangements but never fulfill the promise. “The Gujjars said besides the army, the State police too create hassles for them during their seasonal movement to grazing lands.

“Official complexities are abundant. State police often demands permits and stops us on security grounds,” he said.

Gujjars said government should frame a policy which would alleviate the problem of nomads and save the age old tradition from extinction. The army officials were not available for the comment.

26 JULY 1980
A TALE OF BRUTAL ARMY RAID ON LAL CHOWK
July 25: Twenty nine years on, the memories of a fateful afternoon still haunt Ghulam Nabi Pandav, Chairman of Tourist Taxi Stand No 2 situated in the busy Lal Chowk. It was 26 July 1980, Pandav recalls, when army personnel stormed the city center and within few hours left with a trail of wholesale beating and arson behind them. 

“Some top state police officials were also beaten during the historical army raid from Lal Chowk to Dalgate,” recounts Pandav. “It was all peace, Kashmir was booming with tourism. But the Indian Army men set ablaze scores of our vehicles and damaged dozens others. I still remember the Ambassador Cars bearing Registration No 151, 469, 725 and 903 were set ablaze.”

According to eyewitnesses, the trouble started when an army vehicle on way to Tattoo Ground, a huge army formation near Batamaloo, collided with another civilian vehicle near Tourist Reception Centre. The driver fled the scene but locals apprehended him. His fellow army men went to the barracks and within no time army streamed in droves and went on a beating spree. I saw people bleeding enmasse and whole of Lal Chowk being turned upside down as the army men shattered everything that came their way inflicting losses to the civilian property worth cores of rupees.

Pandav says that the army men were so harsh in their raid on people that the local police proved helpless. “Shops were damaged but vehicles were the main target. Police wasn’t able to control the situation. Even the then Superintendent of Police, Ali Muhammad Watali survived a fatal blow.”  Ali Muhammad Watali, who retired as DIG in 1989, terms 26 July 1980 as “the most sensitive incident” in whole of his police career.

 “I was posted as SP City only a day before the incident,” recollects Watali. On the fateful day Watali, as he narrates the incident, was on his way home when he saw an army vehicle at Lal Chowk having got involved in a motor accident. “As I moved toward my home at Karan Nagar, I directed the then DSP Javaid Makhdoomi (retired as IGP Hqrs in 2008) over wireless that he should handle the case as per the law. Later I came to know that the army had let loose a rein of terror in the city beating and ransacking people.
 Initially, I couldn’t connect the Army atrocities in the city to the earlier accident involving the Indian Army vehicle. On reaching Budshah Chowk I saw an army convoy coming toward Lal Chowk from Tattoo Ground where the Army Supply Corps was stationed. We stopped a vehicle and argued with an Army Captain not to take law in their hands but he didn’t listen. The troopers were targeting vehicles and shopkeepers and beating civilians ruthlessly”

When, Watali goes on to recall, “the police party reached near Taj Hotel, I tried to save a boy who the army men had pounced upon. The moment I told them that I was a police officer they responded hitting me with canes. One of the blows left me unconscious and in a pool of blood. Locals somehow managed to shift me to a hospital.” In the hospital, Watali was shocked to see Javaid Makhdoomi among the injured. 

Later an Administrative Committee probed the incident but termed the incident a “quarrel” between army and civilians. “This was never the case,” Watali rues, “I don’t know how Indian Army let loose its men. I don’t know what happened to the Court of Inquiry formulated by the Indian Army to probe the incident.”

Ghulam Nabi Jogi, who then was a fresher among the professional drivers, says: “The crisis ended only after a divine intervention in the shape of a cloud burst. Indian Army had plans to set the entire city ablaze. They had brought enough petrol with them. The last show was to take place at Batamaloo. The area from Lal Chowk to Gagribal (near Nehru Park) was ransacked. Rains spoiled the angry army men’s plans as it forced them back into the barracks.”

Abdul Qayoom Shah is yet another eyewitness to this wholesale arson and beating incident. Says he, “The army atrocities on that day sent people thinking over the accord Sheikh Muhammad Abdullah had signed with New Delhi.” The following day, according to Shah, Sheikh appeared in Lal Chowk atop a bus and addressed people. He demonstrated his anger against Indian army and New Delhi. Thus he managed to defuse the volatile situation and promised compensation for the victims. Pandav, the Taxi Stand Chief, confirms that then government later gave compensation to the victims whose vehicles where set ablaze. 

A FAMILY LOST ITS TWO MEMBERS TO FIRING BY BSF MEN; 17 YEARS ON JUSTICE ELUSIVE
July 31: On July 31, 1992, a couple in Umar colony, Lal Bazar lost two of its sons. Though it is their (sons) 17 death anniversary on July 31, melancholy and gloom still writs large over the family of the duo, who were shot dead in front of their mother and sister on this fateful day. The most distressing thing for the family is that no action has been taken against the security personnel who perpetrated this gruesome act 17 years ago. 
While narrating the blood-curdling incident, Mehmood-ul-Hassan Farooqi, father of the deceased revealed that some militants attacked a patrol party of 30 battalion BSF personnel around 6:30 pm in the close vicinity of his house at Umar colony, Lal Bazar resulting in on-spot death of one jawan while injuring six personnel. After attacking the patrol party, the militants escaped from the spot. Soon after the incident, the BSF personnel wearing black bands on their heads opened indiscriminate firing and cordoned the whole area.

“The BSF forces then knocked the door of our house. Since I was not present in the house, my wife asked younger son Imtiyaz Ahmad Farooqi, 14, to open the door. The moment Imtiyaz opened the door, the BSF personnel standing at the door fired indiscriminately on him causing his death on the spot,” he said.

He added that on hearing the bullet shots when his wife, daughters and elder son,Taj-ud-Din,20,came wailing outside to see if Imtiyaz was safe the BSF personnel dragged Taj outside the gate and pumped umpteen bullets into his chest, injuring him critically.

“Leaving him in pool of blood, the BSF personnel fled from the spot and locked the gate from outside. My wife and daughters cried for help but to no avail. And when my elder daughter tried to climb the wall to open the gate she was beaten with gun butts by the security personnel.Taj was alive for nearly an hour due to continuous blood loss, he succumbed to injuries in the lap of his mother,” said Mehmood-ul-Hssan in a broken voice.
Unable to control his emotions, Hassan said that his sons were innocent and they were not even remotely involved with militancy. “My elder son had returned from Banglore just three days before his killing where he was doing computer engineering while my younger son,Imtiyaz,14,was a 9th class student of Green Land School,Nigeen.”

Hassan said that the jawans later entered into the house of one, Abdul Rashid, his neighbour and opened indiscriminate fire on the latter’s family in which three people were seriously injured. Though an FIR no.94/162 under 302,307 and 427 was registered in Lal Bazar, Soura police station against the alleged personnel, no police action or judicial proceeding has been initiated against the accused till date.

Besides approaching several government and non-government organizations, an appeal was also lodged in National Human Rights Commission (NHRC) which after several years of dithering referred the case to the then chief secretary, Ashok Jaitley.Again, there was no fruitful outcome.
According to Hassan, there have been some unconfirmed reports that Soura police station had presented a challan in this connection at BSF court in Sanat Nagar on December 26, 2000.He said that while it is being claimed that the court had deemed all the six BSF personnel as accused, no information in this regard has been intimated to the bereaved family so far.
“We do not know whether the culprits have been punished or not because they never took any statement of my family or those doctors who had conducted the post mortem of my sons?” he asserted adding that such claims from security forces are just means of hoodwinking people. 
JKP DOES NOT HAVE THE NUMBERS TO MATCH CRPF

TOP OFFICERS BELIEVE THEY NEED ADDITIONAL BATTALIONS FOR REPLACEMENT

July 10: Going by numbers, Jammu and Kashmir Police may not have the requisite strength to fully replace the Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) as has been promised by Chief Minister Omar Abdullah. As per the official figures, there are total of 58 battalions of CRPF deployed in various areas of the state. The total strength of these personnel is said to be 58,000.On the other hand, state police has a total strength of around 80,000 police personnel, which may be a far higher number. But a large number among them are deployed on the security duty of political leaders, VIP security and on the security of the government and semi-government institutions.
Large numbers of police personnel is also posted in Traffic, Vigilance organization, crime and railways and on anti-hijacking duty. Around 30,000 police personnel are deployed in these departments alone and nearly 10,000 policemen are posted on the security of VIPs and political workers.

The police officials said that not more than 40,000 police personnel are available this moment to replace the huge contingent of 58,000 CRPF personnel. The purpose of deployment of CRPF in the state was aimed to assist the state police, considering the shortage of manpower as compared to its requirement.

The officials admitted that if the state government decided to withdraw CRPF from Baramulla to replace the force with state police, 1,500 CRPF personnel were replaced by a meager number of 143 policemen. The ratios clearly indicate the dearth of police department is in the state, the officers aver trying to build up the plea of additional police reinforcements.
In Srinagar city alone, 65 companies of CRPF are deployed on the internal security of the city comprising 6500 men. The number is still less to meet the existing requirement to maintain law and order of entire Srinagar city. Additional CRPF personnel from rural areas are being deployed on special duty to assist the CRPF and police when authorities impose undeclared curfew.
A battalion has a strength of 1000 CRPF personnel while one company comprises of 100 CRPF personnel. Apart from the strength of Para-military and police force, there is a large number of army, including the specially trained contingent of Rashtriya Riffles battalion posted in the state dealing with anti insurgency operations.
In South Kashmir districts of Anantnag and Pulwama, 14 battalions of RR are deployed. In North Kashmir districts of Baramulla and Kupwara 18 battalions are deployed and in central Kashmir Srinagar-Budgam districts 2 battalions of RR are deployed to conduct anti insurgency operations.

The police officials assert that the decision of central and state governments seems to be a half hearted attempt at least at this instant, considering the shortage of manpower of state police is having. The experts have termed the statements of the Union home minister P.Chidambaram and chief minister Omar Abdullah as politically motivated saying it is aimed at defusing the prevailing crisis emerged after Shopian and Baramulla incidents.

The security officials further added that they have time and again communicated to the state and central leaders that the strength of the police force is inadequate to deal with law and order .The security officials said that the militants can again regroup if the number of the security forces gets reduced. The security officials believe that the number of violent incidents have come down due to the upper hand of large number of security forces. 

SUICIDES/FRATACIDAL KILLINGS BY TROOPS

· TROOPER ENDS LIFE

July 10: A trooper Jail Singh of 4th Rajput Regiment shot himself dead with his service weapon in his unit at Kalaroos in Kupwara.

· CRPF TROOPER KILLS COLLEAGUE

July 14: A CRPF trooper shot dead his colleague and later attempted to commit suicide in Srinagar.A police official said during the intervening night of July 13/14,a CRPF trooper identified as Manoj Phukan fired upon his colleague namely Manjeet Singh of 84 Bn by his service rifle inside a CRPF camp at Sanat Nagar.

“Manjeet was killed on spot. Afterwards Manoj fired towards himself from his own service rifle. He was shifted to SKIMS, Soura by his colleagues. The doctors in the hospital have termed his condition as critical,” police said.

· BSF MAN ENDS LIFE 

July 21: A paramilitary BSF trooper Param Jeet Singh No. 09809064 hanged himself within the premises of STC Humhama in central Kashmir’s Budgam district this morning, a police spokesman said.

ANOTHER BOY DISAPPEARS IN DELHI
July 12: Days after a resident of Budgam went missing in Delhi, another youth hailing from Kathi Darwaza in Rainawari has mysteriously disappeared on July 9.Showkat Ahmad Malik, 28, son of Muhammad Ashraf Malik, a resident of Kathi Darwaza in Rainawari,is missing in Delhi since July 9.

 Showkat was working as a salesman with Kashmir Art Firm of Aga Hassan Mirza in Vietnam for past three years. His family members said that after nearly two years, he (Showkat) visited them in Kashmir to attend the marriage ceremony of his cousin a month back. According to Showkat’s family, he left Kashmir on July 8 and reached Delhi in the afternoon of July 9.
“In the evening he left out for the market from the residence of his employer in C-Block, Lajpat Nagar-1 in New Delhi and after that he never came back,” said his father Muhammad Ashraf Malik. Showkat was supposed to leave for Vietnam on midnight of 9 July at around 1:30 am.

 On July 10, paternal uncles of Showkat and relatives reached Delhi and complained to Delhi police about the disappearance of Showkat and subsequently a missing report was registered in Lajpat Nagar Police station under case no. DD/20a.

 While talking to media, a police official at the Lajpat Nagar police Station said, “We are investigating the case and till now there are no whereabouts of Showkat. We are also in touch with JK police. We contacted CID Kashmir to confirm whether Showkat may have returned to Kashmir.” 

 Showkat is the elder among the siblings with two sisters and a brother.SSP Srinagar, Syed Afadul Mujtaba told media, “No one from Delhi police has contacted us yet, and for this case talk with IGP Kashmir”
Family of Showkat Ahmad finally succeeded in establishing contact with the boy on the evening of July 16. 

EXPLOSIONS
· EXPLOSION ROCK SRINAGAR,SOPORE
July 6: Grenade explosions rocked Sopore and Maisuma causing injuries to eight persons including three cops. Unidentified persons lobbed a hand grenade towards policemen at Maisuma in the heart of Srinagar at around 1800 hours. The grenade exploded with the big bang, causing injuries to eight persons including three policemen. After the explosion, people ran helter skelter and the police and paramilitary personnel launched a combing operation to arrest the persons who had lobbed the grenade.

SSP Srinagar Afhadul Mujtaba told media that the grenade was thrown towards a police party. “Three policemen and five civilians were injured in the explosion,” he said.

Meanwhile, unknown persons fired two rifle grenades in quick succession towards police station, Sopore in North Kashmir’s Baramulla district at around 2.45 PM, police said. The grenades, however, exploded in air without causing any loss of life or damage to property. After the grenade explosion, police and CRPF personnel fired dozens of rounds in air, causing panic in the area with people running for safety.

· BOMB HURLED AT BARAMULLA POLICE STATION
July 7:  In the third grenade explosion within 36 hours, unknown persons targeted a police station in Baramulla.SSP Baramulla Viplav Kumar told media that militants lobbed a hand grenade towards police station, Baramulla.
“The explosive device exploded in the compound of the police station, without causing any damage to property or loss of life,” he said. The grenade explosion, however, caused panic in the area with people running helter skelter and shopkeepers pulling down shutters of their shops.

After the powerful blast, the police and paramilitary personnel laid siege around the area to flush out the persons responsible for the grenade explosion.However, no arrests were reported.

· IED SETS OFF WHILE KIDS FIDDLE WITH SCRAP IN POONCH; 1 KILLED  
GRENADE BLAST IN BUDGAM INJURES 4 WOMEN, CRPF MAN
July 11: A minor boy was killed and two girls injured in a powerful explosion at Bhati Dhar forests in Mendhar area of Rajouri district while seven persons including four women and CRPF man were injured in a grenade blast at Magam in central Kashmir. Police sources said that at around 10.30 am a powerful explosion took place at Bhati Dhar forests in Mendhar area of Rajouri district when children were playing there. In the explosion, a 10-year old minor boy, Waqar Ahmed son of Mohammad Shabi was killed on spot while two girls namely Nahida Kousar daughter of Mohammad Ibrahim and Shahida Kousar daughter of Mohammad Younis were injured.SHO Police Station Mendhar Farooq Shah told media that it was Para bomb explosion. He, however, refused to give further details.

The locals alleged that the explosive device was allegedly planted by Army in Bhati Dhar forest during the two-week long operation against militants in January this year. Terming it as an irresponsible act, they said, “Army should have retrieved the explosive devices after calling off their operation against the militants in Bhati Dhar forest area”. They said there are possibilities that more explosive devices might be lying in the area. “These should be cleared,” the locals demanded.

· ASI KILLED IN SHOPIAN SOG CAMP ATTACK
July 21: A police officer was killed and three of his colleagues’ sustained injuries in a grenade attack in south Kashmir’s Shopian town. Reports said that unknown persons lobbed a riffle grenade on the camp of the Special Operations Group of police at Imam Sahab, Shopian, 53 kilometers from here. 

“The device exploded inside the camp injuring three policemen and a paramilitary CRPF trooper, including an assistant sub inspector of police, Sethi Ram,” said a police official. He said the injured were rushed to a hospital where Ram succumbed. Others injured were identified as Abdul Hameed, belt No 484, Muhammad Shafiq, 53-SPO and Atani Hatoot, a paramilitary CRPF trooper of 14 battalion. The blast was followed by several rounds of gunshots.

On July 22, the death toll in the grenade attack in Imam Sahib, Shopian has risen to two with another Special Police Officer succumbing to injuries, police said.

A police spokesman said: “SPO Mohammad Shafi, who was admitted to SMHS hospital after the attack succumbed to splinter injuries. Shafi was a resident of Zainapora, Shopian.” 
OFFICIAL STATEMENTS

· CRPF REMOVED FROM OMAR’S REQUEST:P CHIDAMBARAM

July 1: Indian Home Minister P Chidambaram said delegation of more responsibility to Jammu and Kashmir police is high on his agenda. “I visited Jammu and Kashmir on June 11.A decision has been taken to redraw lines of responsibility among the army, the paramilitary forces and the Jammu and Kashmir police. We encourage the Jammu and Kashmir police to take over more responsibilities concerning law and order,” Chidambaram told media.

He said the CRPF had been withdrawn from north Kashmir’s Baramulla town on CM Omar Abdullah’s request. “When Omar informed that the state police was ready to take over, the central security forces were withdrawn from Baramulla,”he said.

Defending the central security forces, Chidambaram said they (central forces) act only under the direction of the state government, so if they fire teargas shells, the state government order them to do it. 

· CRPF CANNOT BE WITHDRAWN OVERNIGHT: OMAR  

‘JKP not fully equipped to handle situation’

July 07: Ruling out any immediate withdrawal of CRPF from Jammu and Kashmir, state Chief Minister Omar Abdullah said before considering any such step the state police has to be augmented in numbers, equipment and levels of training. Abdullah, who had meetings with Prime Minister Manmohan Singh and Home Minister P Chidambaram in New Delhi on July 6,said he had raised the issue of withdrawal of the controversial Armed Forces Special Powers Act (AFSPA) in a phased manner.

On the issue of withdrawal of CRPF from the state, he said the police ‘is not immediately ready’ to fill all the gaps. “The CRPF withdrawal has to be as per a plan and simultaneously the state police will have to gear up to be at the forefront of the anti-militancy operations,” he said.

The chief minister said, “We have over 70 battalions of CRPF and the state police’s strength is not even one-third of it. Five battalions of the state police which include India Reserve Police are undergoing training. So any rash decision in this aspect can be detrimental to state s security”.

The chief minister made it clear that there was no move to replace CRPF in the near future as this may lead to a vacuum. “The issue of AFSPA was flagged by me and the Union Home Minister in the first meeting itself and now we are toying with an idea of having it withdrawn in a phased manner where the violence is nil or bare minimum, in such areas this law need not be applicable,” Omar said.

He said he had assured people in his state that AFPSA will be withdrawn. “I have held a series of meetings earlier with the Union Home Minister. Even the Centre has said that it is reviewing the Act,” he said.

The Home Minister, while unveiling the Action Plan-II of his ministry, had said earlier this month that the Centre has "agreed to review AFSPA (in Jammu and Kashmir and Northeast). That review is underway. No decision has been taken yet."

Chidambaram’s attention had been drawn to reports of several committees favoring withdrawal of AFSPA and he had said that "there are a number of suggestions from different quarters. There are suggestions to restrict the area of application of AFSPA. There are suggestions to amend AFSPA. All this is under consideration. No decision has been taken yet."

‘Govt. serious on phased withdrawal’

 Reacting to the report about replacement of CRPF by State police, an official spokesman clarified that the State government was committed to gradual and phased replacement of CRPF by the State police for dealing with law-and-order problems.

The spokesman further added that such replacement never takes place overnight. He said that augmentation of State Police in terms of number and equipment was necessary before substantial replacement.

The spokesman, however, pointed out and apprehended that some forces and elements were not in favour of improvement in ground situation; therefore, they were inciting some elements to indulge in frequent stone-pelting and other law-and-order incidents. He expressed confidence that such forces will not be allowed to succeed and will not deter the Government from moving in this direction.    

· TROOPS HAVE A ROLE IN JK: CHIDAMBARAM

July 22: The Home minister, P Chidambaram, ruled out any possibility of reducing the role of troops in Jammu and Kashmir in the near future. “Army will continue to defend India against militancy and infiltration on the borders. There is no question of reducing their role,” Chidambaram informed the Lok Sabha.

Referring to revocation of the Armed Forces Special Powers Act, due to which troops operating in Jammu and Kashmir enjoy impunity, he said, “It will be reviewed at appropriate time.” He said the Jammu and Kashmir police needed to take up more responsibility in the state but he maintained that paramilitary forces would continue to assist it. “Men in uniform have been directed to strictly observe the code of conduct and respect human rights,” he added.

 “The paramilitary troopers were blamed for Shopian, Maisuma and Baramulla incidents but facts proved it otherwise. These forces were not involved in rape murder and violation of human rights,” Chidambaram said.

He said the state was witnessing a different problem. “Militancy related incidents have declined while agitational approach is on rise. Even a minor incident triggers major agitation which hurts trade tourism besides common people,” he added.

IN BRIEF 
· KT LENSMAN THRASHED

July 1: Police ruthlessly thrashed photo Journalist of The Kashmir Times Imran Ali when he was carrying out his professional duties at Gaw Kadal, Srinagar. Narrating this horrible tale, a bruised and depressed Imran said that he rushed towards Gaw Kadal when he saw police constables chasing people away and damaging window-panes of houses, street lights, hoardings and carts of roadside vendors. 

"When I started clicking pictures while they were damaging the public party, the police constables pounced on me and asked me to refrain from clicking at this demolition exercise," said Imran. 

"After this they started beating me up with whatever they caught hold of. They constantly dealt hard blows on my body with canes and blunted weapons. They also pelted stones at me and one of the stones struck me on my head causing a deep wound. Soon blood started oozing out of the wound and I managed to rescue myself," Imran said. 

· 2 IMAMS BOOKED UNDER PSA

July 1: The government booked two Imams (one who lead prayers) Abdul Hai Lone of Kachidora and Mufti Bilal of Vihal under the Public Safety Act for ‘inciting trouble’.

· BOY BOOKED UNDER PSA
July 3: Massive protests were held in down town against the arrest and slapping of a teenager with PSA. Adil, nephew of Mushtaq Ahmed Zargar. Adil ’Police fired in air, burst tear smoke shells and resorted to cane charge to disperse the protesters.

Official sources said that state administration has invoked PSA against Adil Ahmad Misger son of Sirajudin Misger, who has been lodged in police station Nowhatta since July 2.Adil son of Mushtaq Zargar’s sister whose husband Sirajudin Misger is allegedly missing from the custody of Special Operation Group of police from 19 years. Sources said that the state administration invoked PSA against Adil two weeks earlier and police managed his arrest only on last Thursday.

Meanwhile, hundreds of people, mostly youth, took to streets at Nowhatta and other adjoining areas in the old city and staged protest demonstrations against the detention of Adil.

On July 5, according to reports Adil was released.

· UNIDENTIFIED GUNMEN KILL STUDENT IN SHOPIAN

July 17: Unidentified gunmen shot dead a 10th class student in Shopian district. Police said it has launched cordon and search operation to nab the killers. According to sources unidentified gunmen entered into the house of Ghulam Ahmad Dar resident of Mujpathri in Kellar and shot dead his daughter Parveena Akhter a student of class 10th.

Police claimed that killing was the handiwork of suspected militant and added that a cordon and search operation in the area has been launched to nab the killers. “We have cordoned off the area and have started the searches," SP Shopian Shahid Meraj told media. He said one of his Dy SP visited the spot a case has been registered and investigations have been started. 

· FATHER, SON SHOT DEAD

July 23: Unidentified gunmen shot dead two members of a family, including a three-year-old boy, in Shopian district, police said. According SP Shopian Shahid Meraj a group of unidentified militants entered into the residential house of Mohammad Aslam Awan at Dunardu village of Kellar late last night. 

"Gunmen called Awan, who was carrying three year old son Arif in his lap. The gunmen opened fire," he said. Awan and his three-year-old son died on the spot, he added. Police assisted by security forces has launched a manhunt to nab the culprits, who fled from the spot after the shooting. However, police sources said Awan had survived a similar attempt by the unidentified gunmen earlier on April 15, while his mother, Reshma (50), had died in firing in June this year.

· SHIFT TEENAGER MIR TO SKIMS: HC

July 21: The High Court ordered the jail authorities of Srinagar Central Jail to shift the 16-year-old Shabir Ahmad Mir detainee to SKIMS Soura and get him medically examined by a team of expert doctors. The 16-year-old Mir son of Abdur Rashid of Shopian presently serving his second detention under PSA in Srinagar Central Jail had complained of uncontrolled blood pressure and other chronic ailments few days back. 

“Mir was first arrested under an FIR 67 of 2001 on 13 January 2001 and subsequently bailed out. But still he was not released. Then under FIR 17 of 2006 he was again arrested. He was detained again on the same grounds under PSA, which is illegal,” Mir’s counsel said

Mir’s second detention order is now under challenge in High Court.

KILLINGS IN THE MONTH OF JULY -2009

	  DATE
	SOLDIERS
	MILITANTS
	CIVILIANS
	OTHERS

	July 01
	-
	4
	1
	-

	July 02
	-
	-
	-
	-

	July 03
	-
	1
	2
	1(Surrendered militant)

	July 04
	1
	1
	-
	-

	July 05
	-
	-
	-
	-

	July 06
	-
	-
	-
	-

	July 07
	-
	-
	-
	-

	July 08
	1
	-
	-
	1(VDC member)

	July 09
	-
	-
	1
	-

	July 10
	1
	-
	-
	-

	July 11
	-
	1
	1
	-

	July 12
	-
	-
	-
	-

	July 13
	-
	-
	-
	-

	July 14
	1
	1
	-
	-

	July 15
	-
	-
	-
	-

	July 16
	-
	-
	1
	-

	July 17
	-
	2
	2
	1 (Alleged militant sympathizer)

	July 18
	-
	-
	-
	-

	July 19
	-
	-
	1
	-

	July 20
	-
	-
	-
	-

	July 21
	2
	-
	-
	-

	July 22
	1
	-
	-
	-

	July 23
	-
	-
	2
	-

	July 24
	-
	-
	-
	-

	July 25
	-
	-
	-
	-

	July 26
	-
	1
	-
	-

	July 27
	-
	3
	-
	-

	July 28
	2
	1
	-
	-

	July 29
	-
	1
	-
	-

	July 30
	-
	1
	-
	-

	July 31
	-
	-
	-
	-

	TOTAL
	9
	17
	11
	3

	                                                                               IN TOTAL
	40 Killings


	Date
	Custodial and Extra judicial Killings
	Women Killed
	Children Killed
	Alleged Disappearances

	7 July 2009
	-
	-
	-
	1

	9 July 2009
	-
	1
	-
	-

	11 July 2009
	-
	-
	1
	-

	17 July 2009
	-
	1
	-
	-

	23 July 2009
	-
	-
	1
	-

	TOTAL
	0
	2
	2
	1



CHRONOLOGY OF INCIDENTS
July 1: Police claimed to have killed three militants of Lashkar-e-Toiba in an ongoing encounter with troops in Jammu’s Doda district. The slain militants have been identified as Bilal, Abu Zarar and Zafarullah. Meanwhile, body of a commander of Hizbul Mujahideen was recovered from south Kashmir’s Kulgam district. Police spokesman said that a bullet riddled body of a Hizbul Mujahideen commander, Rafiq Ahmad of Marwah Reasi was recovered from Pambanar Damhal Hanjipora in Kulgam district. In another incident, a youth identified as Amir Rashid Mir, son of Abdul Rashid Mir of Tawheed Gunj died in Sher-e-Kashmir Institute of Medical Sciences Soura taking the toll to four.Amir had sustained injuries in CRPF firing on June 29.

July 2: At least six persons were injured in the police action at Baramulla.A youth, Sheikh Mudasir was hit by a rubber bullet and was shifted to a hospital in a critical condition.
July 3: Body of Khalid Sharief Mir ,11 was recovered from river Jhelum.The local people alleged that he was tortured and thrown into the river by CRPF during an action against the protesters in Sopore.Meanwhile, a Lashkar militant identified as Saifullah was killed in an encounter at Waderbala in Handwara.Unidentified militants gun down a surrendered militant of Hizbul Mujahideen (HM) outfit identified as Abdul Majeed Genoo son of Ghulam Rasool Genoo resident of Tander Dachhan and son of a former Vice-Sarpanch in Tander Village of Dachhan of Tehsil Marwah, at least 65 km from district headquarter Kishtwar.The deceased has been identified as Nazir Ahmad Genoo. 
July 4: An Albadar militant identified as Abdullah Bhai and a trooper identified as Krishan Kumar of 21 Rashtriya Rifles were killed in an encounter at Waderbala in Handwara.
July 5: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

July 6: Grenade explosions lobbed by unidentified persons rocked Sopore and Maisuma causing injuries to eight persons including three cops. 

July 7: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

July 8: Police said that unidentified gunmen shot dead a Village Defence Committee member and injured a teenager in South Kashmir’s Kulgam distrct.The deceased has been identified as Akbar Gorsi and the injured as Farid, 13.In another incident, a policeman identified as Zulfkar who was injured in a grenade blast near Gaw Kadal in city centre on July 6 succumbed to his injuries at SKIMS at Soura.
July 9: Amina Masoodi, 20, a college student died mysteriously at Doolipora Trehgam in Kupwara. Her family has blamed Territorial Army for what they alleged Shopian-style rape-murder and accused trooper of 160 TA battalion, Ashiq Hussain Peer for perpetrating the crime. 

July 10: A trooper Jail Singh of 4th Rajput Regiment shot himself dead with his service weapon in his unit at Kalaroos in Kupwara.

July 11: Army claimed to have killed a top Lashkar-e-Toiba commander during an encounter in Handwara forests. The slain militant, according to army, has been identified as Zarkari Bhai of Pakistan and was battalion commander of LeT outfit in Kupwara district. Meanwhile, a minor boy was killed and two girls injured in a powerful explosion at Bhati Dhar forests in Mendhar area of Rajouri district.

July 12: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

July 13: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

July 14: A CRPF trooper identified as Manooj Phukan shot dead his colleague Manjeet Singh of 84 Bn by his service rifle inside a CRPF camp at Sanat Nagar and later attempted to commit suicide.Meanwhile, a Hizbul Mujahideen militant was killed during an encounter with troops in Reasi area of Jammu. The slain militant has been identified as Bashir Ahmed alias Jaanbaz.

July 15: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
July 16: A civilian was kidnapped and killed by the militants in Seel area of Doda.Official reports said a civilian Ghulam Mohi-ud-Din Malik son of Ghulam Hyder, a resident of Seel Bhandass in Doda was kidnapped last night from his house by two militants. His bullet-riddled body was recovered by local people and police from Sogwal forests in Seel area today.

July 17: Two militants and a woman were killed in an encounter in Jammu's Doda distrct.The slain militants have been identified as Suhail and Ishaq Khan and the deceased woman as Shakeela.Meanwhile, unidentified gunmen barged into the house of Ghulam Ahmad Dar at Mujpathri Keller and shot dead his daughter Parveena Akhtar.In another incident, unidentified gunmen shot dead Ghulam Mohi-ud-Din Malik at Seel Bhandass in Doda.

July 18: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

July 19: A youth identified as Abdul Hamid, 22, son of Ghulam Hassan resident of Chilli area was shot at and killed on the spot by some unidentified gunmen at his residence at Chilli area of Gandoh in district Doda.Meanwhile, a Village Defence Committee member identified as Rajesh Kumar wounded three of his family members by opening fire on them in Rajouri district.

July 20: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

July 21: A police officer was killed and three of his colleagues’ sustained injuries in a grenade attack in south Kashmir’s Shopian town. Unknown persons lobbed a riffle grenade on the camp of the Special Operations Group of police at Imam Sahab, Shopian. The deceased has been identified as Sethi Ram and the injured as Abdul Hameed, belt No 484, Muhammad Shafiq, 53-SPO and Atani Hatoot paramilitary CRPF trooper of 14 battalion. Meanwhile, a paramilitary BSF trooper Param Jeet Singh No. 09809064 hanged himself within the premises of STC Humhama in central Kashmir’s Budgam district, a police spokesman said.

July 22: The death toll in grenade blast in south Kashmir’s Shopian town on July 21 mounted to two with one more policeman, Mohammad Shafi succumbing to his injuries.  

July 23: Unidentified gunmen shot dead two members of a family, including a three-year-old boy, in Shopian district. The deceased have been identified as Mohammad Aslam Awan of Dunardu village of Kellar and his three year old son Arif.

July 24: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

July 25: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

July 26: An unidentified militant was killed in Kalaroos area of north Kashmir’s Kupwara district near the Line of Control (LoC).

July 27: Army claimed to have foiled an infiltration bid in Tangdar sector in North Kashmir by killing three militants.

July 28: Two troopers and militant were killed in an encounter in Shopian district.The slain militant has been identified as Jehangir Ahmad Ganai son of Ghulam Mohammad resident of Haf-Shermaal,Shopian.The deceased troopers have been identified as Islam-u-Din and Ratibar of 62 RR.

July 29: Army claimed to have foiled an infiltration attempt of militants in Kupwara by killing an unidentified militant.
July 30: An unidentified militant was killed in the ingoing operation in Keran, Kupwara.

July 31: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
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WOMAN /CHILDREN KILLED





July 9: Amina Masoodi, 20, a college student died mysteriously at Doolipora Trehgam in Kupwara. Her family has blamed Territorial Army for what they alleged Shopian-style rape-murder and accused trooper of 160 TA battalion, Ashiq Hussain Peer for perpetrating the crime. 


July 11: A minor boy was killed and two girls injured in a powerful explosion at Bhati Dhar forests in Mendhar area of Rajouri district. Police sources said that at around 10.30 am a powerful explosion took place at Bhati Dhar forests in Mendhar area of Rajouri district when children were playing there. In the explosion, a 10-year old minor boy, Waqar Ahmed son of Mohammad Shabi was killed on spot while two girls namely Nahida Kousar daughter of Mohammad Ibrahim and Shahida Kousar daughter of Mohammad Younis were injured.


July 17: Unidentified gunmen shot dead a 10th class student in Shopian district. According to sources unidentified gunmen entered into the house of Ghulam Ahmad Dar resident of Mujpathri in Kellar and shot dead his daughter Parveena Akhter a student of class 10th. 


July 23: Unidentified gunmen shot dead two members of a family, including a three- year-old boy, in Shopian district, police said. A group of unidentified militants entered into the residential house of Mohammad Aslam Awan at Dunardu village of Kellar and opened fire on them. Awan and his three-year-old son died on the spot. 





Shamima accused that Vishnesh attempted to kill Saleem in a fake encounter and publicly announced that Saleem had links with militants and opened fire at police at Bus Stand Jammu. She said her younger son died a few months after. With tears in her eyes, Shamima said: “Tariq’s death was not a happenstance, but a planned murder.”





PULL OUT OF 20 CRPF BATTALIONS FROM JK LIKELY


July 12: New Delhi is contemplating to pull out at least 23,000 paramilitary troopers from Jammu and Kashmir.As many as 16 battalions of the CRPF -- 10 from Kashmir valley and six from other areas, five of Border Security Force and two of Indo-Tibetan Border Police -- are likely to be moved out of the state soon, official sources said. Each battalion comprises around 1,000 personnel.


The sources said a decision to the effect might be taken after completion of the Amarnath Yatra, which is scheduled to conclude early next month. They said the CRPF, which has over 75,000 personnel in the Valley, out of which one-third had been deployed to counter-insurgency grid, needed to be trimmed down. The review of CRPF deployment shows that most of its personnel, supposedly on duty with the counter insurgency grid, were deployed on guard duty of senior state police officials and ministers, the sources said.





Basharat’s mother would have committed suicide had not he released. 





Nayeem consumed poison to put an end to the SOG harassment.





Fayaz’s paternal uncle Zia Mir was allegedly killed by army who tied a bomb around him at Khorhama Chowk, they said. Zia was working as a porter with Army’s Kuligam post and, according to the family, had refused to obey army’s diktats.





However, it couldn’t be ascertained whether the ‘Rakshak’ vehicles used by the paramilitary CRPF would be the part of the parade or not.  


The preliminary investigations have revealed that 82 bullets were missing from the ammunition records of the CRPF patrol that was deployed in Baramulla town on June 29.  





The most distressing thing for the family is that no action has been taken against the security personnel who perpetrated this gruesome act 17 years ago. 





“We do not know whether the culprits have been punished or not because they never took any statement of my family or those doctors who had conducted the post mortem of my sons?”
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